Mayor:

Scott Wiggill

o - Council:

Sunset City Corporation Nancy Smalling
Nakisha Rigley
200 West 1300 North = Sunset City, Utah 84015 - 801-825-1628 Hope Thompson
Ricky Carlson

Sam Bartling

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sunset City Council will hold a regular meeting at 6:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, November 18, 2025 at the Sunset City Office Building, 200 West 1300 North, Sunset, Utah. Any
information or items for the Council’s consideration must be furnished at least ten (10) working days prior to
the scheduled meeting to give the needed time to study the request. Agenda shall be as follows:

REGULAR SESSION

A, CALLTO ORDER & WELCOME

B. INVOCATION OR INSPIRATIONAL THOUGHT AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE by Council Member
Bartling

C. APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS - §16,294.43 to Premier Installation for Equipment for the 2026 Police Dodge
Durango

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - October 21, 2025

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS

F. MOTION TO GO INTO A PUBLIC HEARING

PUBLIC HEARING

G. To Solicit Input from Sunset City Residents to Remove Chapter 12 Internal Accessory Dwelling Units
from Title 10 of the Sunset City Municipal Code

H. To Solicit Input from Sunset City Residents to Add Chapter 12 Accessory Dwelling Units to Title 10 of the
Sunset City Municipal Code

[. Motion to go back into the Regular Session

AGENDA ITEMS

1. Discuss and Approve Ordinance 2025-04 Repealing Sunset City Code Section 10-12-1 Entitled Internal
Accessory Dwelling Units

2. Discuss and Approve Ordinance 2025-05 Adopting Chapter 12 Accessory Dwelling Units to Title 10: Zoning
Regulations

3. Discuss and Approve Resolution 2025-19 Sunset City Council Acting as the Board of Canvassers Certifving
the Results of the November 4, 2025 Municipal General Election

Mayor, Council and Department Head Reports
Adjourn

o=

Possible closed meeting for reasons allowed by Utah State Code 52-4-205.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should
notify the Sunset City Offices, (801) 825-1628, at least three (3) working days prior to this meeting., Anchor location for electronice
meetings by telephone device is 200 W 1300 N, Sunset UT 84015, With the adoption of Ordinance 1-6-3, the Council may
participate per Electronic Meeting Rules. Please make arrangements in advance. Posted and e-mailed to local newspaper —
November 14, 2025.

W%

Nicole Supp, RecM'dcf




DATE

10/30/25

Mayor

SUNSET CITY CORPORATION

VOUCHER APPROVAL FOR INVOICES OVER $15.000.00
Date: November 5. 2023 — November 18, 2025

VENDOR DESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT AMOUNT
Premier Installation Equipment for 2026 Dodge Durango Police $16.294.43
Total $16.294 .43

Council Members

City Recorder

City Treasurer

Date




Invoice

Date Invoice #
10/30/2025 48953
Premier Vehicle Installation, Inc
3037 S 300 W
South Salt Lake, UT 84115
( BilTo )
g .
Sunset Police Department
200 W. 1300 N.
Sunset City, Utah 84015
P.0O. No. Terms Project
N
ltem Quantity Description Rate Amount
ENNLB1248 ENNLB01844-3V4 - QSF083613 1,950.00 1,950.00
nFORCE® nxt Lightbar
48"/122cm 9-32 VOLT NFORCE NXT LED
LIGHTBAR W/ 15' LIN DSC TECHNOLOGY
/D24/|D12||D12|D12|D12||D12|D12\D24\
/R_W/|R_W[R_W|R_W|B_W|B_W|B_W|\B_W\
IDO6|--GRT-||-GRT-~||--GRT---|O-GRT--|D06|
IR_W}--CLR-|-CLR—||—~CLR---|O-CLR—[B_W|
\D24\ [D12|D12|D12|D12|D12D12| /D24/
\R_W\R_A|R_A|R_A|B_A|B_A|B_A/B_W/
Domes - Polycarb [D|12[12[P]
Accessories - PNFLBSPLT1, AUTO-DIM
Mount - Standard Fixed Height Mount
(PNFLBKO08) & Extension Plate (PNFLBKXT)
Hook - PNFLBF14
Vehicle - 2025 Dodge Durango
EMPS2STS5RBW mpower™ 4" Fascia Light w/ Stud Mount, 18" hard 163.58 327.16
wire w/ sync option, SAE Class 1 & CA Title 13, 9-32
Vdc, Black Housing, 18 LED, Tri Color -
Red/Blue/White  Grill Mount
ESLRL61158 SoundOff SL Running Light, 61" - 5 Module, Tricolor 394.93 789.86
Red/Blue/White
PSLVBKO04 Mounting Kit for SL Running Light includes: Bracket 50.83 101.66
& Hardware Kit, Dodge Durango 2011-2023
ETFBSSN-P Flashback 100% Solid State 63.09 63.09
ELUC3HO010B 2 | Universal UnderCover Screw-In LED Insert Single 102.60 205.20
Light Kit, 9-32 Vdc w/ 10* 5-wire harness: includes
insert, Lens
#1 (Extreme Angle) & Inline Flasher — Single Color
Blue inserts in Reverse Lights
Phone # E-mail Total
801 - 478-3062 clint{@premiervehicle.com PaymentsIC redits
Balance Due

Page 1




Invoice

Date Invoice #
10/30/2025 48953
Premier Vehicle Installation, Inc
3037 S 300 W
South Salt Lake, UT 84115
( BilTo )
£ .
Sunset Police Department
200 W. 1300 N.
Sunset City, Utah 84015
P.O. No. Terms Project
L
ltem Quantity Description Rate Amount
ELUC3HO010] Universal UnderCover Screw-In LED Insert Single 102.60 205.20
Light Kit, 9-32 Vdc w/ 10* 5-wire harness: includes
insert, Lens #1 (Extreme Angle) & Inline Flasher —
Dual Color Red/Blue
EMPS2QMS4] mpower™ 4" Fascia Light w/ Quick Mount, 18" hard 147.22 294.44
wire w/ sync option, SAE Class | & CA Title 13, 9-32
Vde, Black Housing, 12 LED, Dual Color - Red/Blue
Mounted on bottom Rear hatch Trim with License Plate
PMP2WDG35B 35 Degree Wedge Assembly for 4 Inch Quick Mount 7.80 15.60
Light
10-VS-XL-C2 PK1185DURI1 868.38 868.38
"#10XL C2 Horizontal Sliding Window Uncoated
Polycarbonate With Slotted Polycarbonate Window
Security Screen XL Panel Partition TM (Tall Man)"
12-V§ PKOI23DURII2ND 593.76 593.76
Cargo Area Rear Partition with Stationary Vinyl Coated
Expanded Metal Screen Window .
WEI-004 Dual Weapons System with Dual Handcuff Locks 608.88 608.88
ENGSAS5200RSP bluePRINT® 500 Series Remote Control System with 1,160.40 1,160.40
Button Control, 10-16v - 200 watt dual-tone
ETSS100J 100J Series Composite Speaker w/ Universal Bail 234.27 468.54
Bracket - 100 watt
ENGND04102 bluePRINT 2nd Gen Remote Node with Magnetic 1D 229.80 229.80
ENGHNKO5 Remote Node Harness 2nd Gen 54.92 54.92
ENGLMK002 bluePRINT Link® Micro Module & Vehicle Harness 386.16 386.16
for Dodge Charger 2015-2022 & Durango 2018-2022
C-V8-2300-DUR Havis Vehicle-Specific 23" Console For 2021-2025 452.25 452.25
Dodge Durango Pursuit
C-HDM-214 Havis 8.5" Heavy-Duty Telescoping Pole, Side Mount 142.50 142.50
C-MD-119 Havis 11" Slide Out Locking Swing Arm with Low 284.25 284.25
Profile Motion Device Adapter
Phone # E-mail Total
801 - 478-3062 clint@premiervehicle.com Payments]c redits
Balance Due

Page 2




Invoice

Date invoice #
10/30/2025 48953
Premier Vehicle Installation, Inc
3037 S 300 W
South Salt Lake, UT 84115
( siTo )
(Sunset Police Department
200 W. 1300 N.
Sunset City, Utah 84015
P.O. No. Terms Project
.
ltem Quantity Description Rate Amount
UT-1001 1 | Havis Universal Rugged Cradle for approximately 261.00 261.00
11"-14" Computing Devices. UT-1001 ships with
standard set of lugs pre-installed. Sliding hold down
lugs allow for flexibility and access to computing
device ports and inputs.
CA-0129 1 | LED Map Light Red/White 12" 89.60 89.60
C-LP2-USB-BL2 1 | Havis Console Accessory Bracket With 2 Lighter Plug 120.75 120.75
Outlets,1 USB-C & USB Type A Dual Port Charger
And 2 Blanks For Rectangular Accessories (2")
CUP2-1001 1| Self-Adjusting Double Cup Holder 52.50 52.50
C-ARM-109 | | Havis internal mount armrest. 3.15" accessory pocket 254.25 254.25
depth with felt liner. Uses 4" of equipment space in
console.
425-3816 2 | Magnetic Mic Clip - Single Pack 40.60 81.20
C-MCB 2 | Mic Clip Bracket 15.00 30.00
PDU-138S8-PV 1| D & R Power Distribution Unit, 13 outputs, 4 Digit 195.00 195.00
LED display, battery voltage monitoring, Individual
LED fuse status indicator. 5 Constant outputs at 20
amp, 5 Ignition Outputs at 20amps, 3 Timed Outputs at
20 amps outputs
MRCB100 1| 100 Amp Resettable Relay 26.50 26.50
46096 1| Power Fuse Module 21.03 21.03
PVIB2 1 | Fuse Holder Bracket 12.30 12.30
Shipping/Freight 1 | Estimated Shipping or Freight Charges for Setina, 380.00 380.00
Havis Products
3/4" NMO Coax 1]3/4" NMO Coax -- 17" 15.00 15.00
Phantom 800 Ant... 1 {800 MHz Phantom Antenna --White 41.16 41.16
Noco GEN 5x2 1 [ NOCO GEN 5x2, 2-Bank, 10-Amp On-Board Battery 149.66383 149.66
Charger, Battery Maintainer, and Battery Desulfator
Noco GCP1 1| NOCO AC Port Plug With 16 Inch Extension Cord 26.95 26.95
Phone # E-mail Total
801 - 478-3062 clint@premiervehicle.com Payments"c redits
Balance Due

Page 3




Invoice

Date Invoice #
10/30/2025 48953
Premier Vehicle Installation, Inc
3037 S 300 W
South Salt Lake, UT 84115
( Bill To )
Sunset Police Department
200 W. 1300 N.
Sunset City, Utah 84015
P.O. No. Terms Project
N
Item Quantity Description Rate Amount
Tint-SUV 1 | SUV Ceramic Window Tint 35% Front Windows, 20% 400.00 400.00
Rear Windows, 20% Glare Strip MaxCool IR is a nano
ceramic window film that provides higher heat rejection
and infrared rejection (IR)
200-0622-00 1| VSS Cable Kit 155.99 155.99
200-0648-00 1 | Stalker Sun Shade Display Mount 38.26 38.26
200-0244-00 1 | Stalker Short Bracket mounts Ka-Band antenna only to 53.00 53.00
the dash or deck. Includes Velcro and thumbscrews
200-0245-00 1 | Stalker Tall Bracket for Ka-Band antenna when extra 53.47 53.47
height is needed for dash- or deck-mount Includes
Velcro and thumb screws
155-2591-08 1 | Stalker 8 Foot Antenna Cable, IP67 (replaces 109.78 109.78
155-2055-08)
155-2591-20 1| 20 Foot Antenna Cable, IP67 178.98 178.98
Install Kit 1 | Installation Materials 246.00 246.00
Install Labor 41 | Install Labor -- Tri Color LED's in grill, Headlight 100.00 4,100.00
Inserts, Exterior Lightbar, Inserts in Tail Lights, tail
light flasher, LED's on bottom of License Plate trim on
Hatch, Side Runners below door sill panel, Console,
Power Outlets, USB Outlet, Arm Rest, cup holder,
Computer Stand, Flex Light, 200W Light/Siren
Controller, 2 Siren Speakers, Power Distribution Unit,
Front and rear Partition, Dual Weapon Mount, Spot
light with LED Insert, Battery Maintainer, Customer
Supplied Radio/Radar/Video (Video applicable on first
2 units)
2026 Dodge Durango Patrol ~ VIN# 156218
State Contract# MA4686
Chief Brett Jameson
(801)725-3017
Phone # E-mail Total
801 - 478-3062 clint(@premiervehicle.com Payme nts/Credits
Balance Due

Page 4




Invoice

Date Invoice #
10/30/2025 48953
Premier Vehicle Installation, Inc
3037 S 300 W
South Salt Lake, UT 84115
( BilTo )
Gunset Police Department
200 W. 1300 N.
Sunset City, Utah 84015
P.O. No. Terms Project
N,
ltem Quantity Description Rate Amount
Program take down lights to be all white forward facing
on the lightbar
Cruise red/blue on runners instead of white.
Phone # E-mail Total 3162844
801 - 478-3062 clint@premiervehicle.com Payments]credits $0.00
All invoices more than 30 days past due will be charged a 1.5% interest charge per month
from the dated date of invoice. Balance Due %%
Page 5




Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
QOctober 21, 2025

Page 1 of 16

Minutes of a regular meeting held October 21. 2025 at Sunset City Hall, 200 West 1300 North.
Sunset, Utah; Mayor Wiggill presiding.

REGULAR SESSION
Mayor and Council Present:

Scott Wiggill Mayor

Sam Bartling Council Member
Ricky Carlson Council Member
Nakisha Rigley Council Member
Nancy Smalling Council Member
Hope Thompson Council Member

City Emplovees Present:

Recorder Supp Recorder

Brett Jamison Police Chief

Jason Monroe Public Works Director
Alyssa Rodriguez Court Supervisor

Brendan Davis Police Sergeant

Dalton Smuin City Attorney (Electronically)

Others Present:

Katherine Hunter Sunset

Marcia Hamblin Sunset

Brenda Ewell Sunset

Beverly Macfarlane Sunset

Ronald Wilson Sunset

Cornel Thomas Sunset

Jerry Sunderland Sunset

Martin Harder Clinton

Ryan Perkins Perkins Poll Law
Brandon Poll Perkins Poll Law
Dalton Smuin Daines and Jenkins
Nic Mills South Ogden

The regular session was called to order at 6:34 p.m. by Mayor Wiggill.
Council Member Carlson gave a prayer/inspirational thought and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS: $42.203.00 to Young Auto and $16.294.43 to Premier
Installation for the 2026 Dodge Durango and the required equipment. Council Member
Thompson asked what the budgeted amount was for the vehicle and whether the expense was

within that amount. Chief Jamison confirmed that the purchase was within the budget which was
$120,000.




Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 2 of 16

Council Member Smalling made a motion to approve the vouchers for Young Auto and Premier
[nstallation for the 2026 Dodge Durango and equipment, and Council Member Rigley seconded
the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bartling, Carlson. Rigley.,
Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Council Member Bartling stated he had reviewed the minutes and
raised a concern with the Recorder Supp. He recommended tabling approval of the minutes to
allow time for further review.,

Council Member Bartling made a motion to table the meeting minutes from October 7. 2025 and
Council Member Thompson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council
Members Bartling, Carlson, Rigley, Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

Public Comments: Martin Harder — owns commercial property at 269 W 1260 N. Martin
Harder approached the podium and stated that he owned a commercial building located at 269
West 1260 North. He addressed the planned water shutofT scheduled for Thursday, noting that he
had spoken with a representative from Matt Carter’s development about the possibility of
rescheduling the shutoff to the following Monday. which was his day off and also the day off for
another business in his building. This change, he explained, would minimize the impact on
operations. He requested that the City support moving the shutoff to Monday. Mayor Wiggill
thanked Mr. Harder for his comments.

Jerry Sunderland — 398 W 825 N — Mr. Sunderland stated that his family had lived on 825 North
for 50 years and that he had attended a recent Planning Commission meeting regarding short-
term rentals. He explained his interest in operating an owner-occupied short-term rental (Airbnb)
from his home. He shared that he had maintained an Airbnb for nearly 10 years without incident.
but recently was informed by the Sunset Police Chiel that short-term rentals were not allowed
within City limits. Mr. Sunderland described his efforts to gather information about why Sunset
did not allow short-term rentals while surrounding cities did. He mentioned that he met with a
City representative who explained that the neighboring cities simply had not been cited yet. He
expressed frustration that he was unable to continue operating his Airbnb. particularly as he
relied on it for income after retirement and while supporting his wife and her daughter. He urged
the City to reconsider its position on short-term rentals. Mayor Wigeill thanked Mr. Sunderland

for his comments.

Council Member Rigley made a motion to go into a Public Hearing and Council Member
Thompson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bartling.
Carlson, Rigley. Smalling and Thompson voting ves.

PUBLIC HEARING: To Solicit Input from Sunset City Residents in regards to removing
Strategy #4 from Section 4.6 of the Moderate-Income Housing Element ol the General Plan —
Amend land use regulations to allow for single room occupancy.

Recorder Supp explained that the Planning Commission had been working extensively on the
Moderate-Income Housing Plan. While they initially selected the single-room occupancy
strategy as an additional option to explore. they ultimately determined it was not a viable fit for
the City. The commission therefore recommended removing it from the general plan. Council



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 3 of 16

Member Thompson asked whether the removal would apply to both long-term and short-term
occupancy. Recorder Supp confirmed that it would apply to both.

There were no public comments.

Council Member Smalling made a motion to go out of the Public Hearing and Council Member
Bartling seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bartling.
Carlson, Rigley, Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

Regular Meeting

1 Discuss and Approve Resolution 2025-18 Amending the Moderate-Income Housing
Element of the General Plan: Council Member Thompson asked if the Planning
Commission would consider bringing it back in the future. Recorder Supp clarified that
the Planning Commission had struggled with aspects of the allowing the single room
occupancy. including questions about a potential transient room tax. She noted that while
the concept could be revisited in the future, for now the commission wished to remove it.

Council Member Bartling made a motion to approve removing the extra clement in the General
Plan and Council Member Smalling scconded the motion. The motion passed with a roll call vote
with Council Members Bartling. Carlson. Rigley and Smalling voting yes. Council Member
Thompson voting no.

2. Discuss Road Vacate of 175 West with Curtis Carlson for Church of Jesus Christ of
Latter-Day Saints Located at 975 North 220 West: Recorder Supp informed the
Council she received an email asking for this item to be tabled until further notice.

Council Member Carlson made a motion to table item #2 and Council Member Smalling seconded
the motion. The motion passed unanimously with Council Members Bartling. Carlson, Rigley.
Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

A. Updates from the UDOT Municipal Coordination Tean on the 1800 North Project
with Beverly Macfarlane: Beverly Maclarlanc explained that she served as the Sunset
City resident representative on the UDOT 1800 North coordination team. which also
mcluded members from Davis School District, MIDA. local employers such as Charlie’s.
Clinton City, and contractors involved in the project. The team’s purpose was to collect

and address public concerns refated to the 1800 North construction.

She shared that early in the process. she had raised concerns about Sunset City’s water
connections, which were later verified by the project’s water engineers. She emphasized
the importance of ongoing communication between the project team and Sunset residents.

Ms. Maclarlane praised the construction crews. particularly those managing traffic
barrels. for their efficient work. She reported that the main complaint received thus [ar
involved the installation of above-ground broadband boxes along the south side of the
road. which residents had not expected.

She also shared positive news that MIDA planned future commercial development on the
cast side ol the freeway. potentially increasing Sunset’s business tax base.

Ms. Macfarlane highlighted salety efforts for children near the construction arca. noting
that UDOT had implemented safety training at clementary schools to teach students about



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 4 of 16

construction hazards. She expressed concern about junior high students™ tendency to
disregard crosswalk rules and urged continued education efforts.

She encouraged Council members to gather feedback from residents about the project so
she could report it back to UDO'T. Council Member Thompson asked for a list of the
coordination team members. and Ms. Maclarlane agreed to provide it.

Council Member Smalling recalled that when UDOT previously met with the Council.
members had expressed strong support for an overpass or safety measure for students
crossing 1800 North, but UDOT determined it was unnecessary based on their studies.
Council Member Smalling noted that despite assurances. the project had caused more
impact on side streets than anticipated. Council Member Carlson also noted that the
Council had discussed similar safety concerns several years ago. Ms. Macfarlane
acknowledged their comments and realtirmed her commitment to advocating for the
City’s interests with UDOT.

Mayor Wiggill thanked Ms. Macfarlane for her continued involvement and dedication.
Mayor Wiggill noted that the fire chief had also been monitoring the project closely and
that no significant incidents had been reported so far. Ms. Macfarlane thanked Mayor
Wiggill and reiterated that she would continue to communicate any concerns to UDOT.

Council watched a short video of some ol the training that went on in the elementary
schools.

Discuss and Approve Development Agreement for Ascend Development Based on
Changes from 10/20/2025: Next. Mayor Wiggill discussed the previous evening's
special meeting, where the Council had reviewed and discussed the development
agreement for the Ascend development. Mayor Wiggill asked if there were any
remaining questions or comments.

Council Member Thompson stated for the record she did not agree with the decision
made during that meeting. Mayor Wiggill acknowledged the comment and called for a
motion regarding the development agreement.

Council Member Carlson made a motion to approve the agreement. Before proceeding.

Council Member Smalling asked whether Recorder Supp had everything needed to
document the changes discussed at the special meeting. Recorder Supp confirmed that all
updates had been made and distributed. The motion died due to lack of a second.

The discussion continued with Council Member Rigley asking for clarification about
what specific changes had been made to the document as she was not present at the
meeting the day before.

Council Member Thompson explained that the timeline changes had been refused. She
stated that the developer originally asked for seven years and later reduced the request to
five years, which would still amount to seven years total. effectively extending the
project to nine years since it had already started three years prior. Council Member
Thompson expressed frustration that a single 37-unit building project would take nine
years to complete within the City. Council Member Rigley agreed. describing the



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 5 of 16

situation as “ludicrous’™ and noting that this concern had also been expressed in her email
correspondence.

Council Member Thompson added that Mayvor Wiggill had to break the tie on which term
vear to add to the agreement because two Council members had voted in favor and two
had voted against.

Mayor Wiggill asked il there were any additional questions or concerns and then called
for a motion.

Council Member Carlson made a motion to approve the Ascend Development Agreement and
Council Member Smalling seconded the motion. The motion did not pass. with Council Members
Bartling, Rigley and Thempson voting no and Council Members Carlson and Smalling voting ves.

Mayor Wiggpill remarked that he was surprised by the outcome and stated that the item
would need to be revisited at another time. Mayor Wiggill added that he had hoped the
development agreement issues would have been resolved 1o everyone's satislaction
during the prior meeting, as the Council had participated in the discussion.

Council Member Rigley asked to make a comment and apologized for not attending the
previous meeting due to severe illness related to pregnancy. She stated that despite being
unwell, she had reviewed every line of the agreement and submitted her concerns in
writing, so her vote should not have been a surprise to anyone.

Mayor Wiggill acknowledged that the vote had been taken and recorded. reiterating that
the Council had gone line by line through the issues, with the only adjustment being to
the project timeline. Council Member Rigley conlirmed that the timeline had been one of
her major concerns. Mayor Wiggill agreed.

Council Member Thompson then commented that there should be no surprise at the
outcome, since both she and Council Member Bartling had voted against the item the
night before, and that Council Member Rigley had sent concerns via email in advance of
the meeting.

Mayor Wiggill concluded the discussion. stating that the vote had been finalized and that
the Council would move forward o

:JI

Conduct Interviews for City Attorney in Order of Received: Mayor Wiggill then
announced that the Council would begin interviews for the Cily attorney position. The
interviews would be conducted in the order applications were received. Each candidate
would be asked a set of prepared questions, followed by potential questions from the
Council Members.

The first interview was with Nicholas “Nic” Clyde Mills. Mayor Wiggill invited Mr.
Mills to step forward and explained that the questions had not been provided in advance.
Mayor Wiggill then asked Mr. Mills to tell the Council about himself. his experience. and
why he was interested in working with the City,

Mr. Mills stated that he did not have a firm but was currently serving as the Kaysville
City Attorney in a full-time, in-house capacity. He explained that he handled both civil
work and prosecution duties there. He noted that Kaysville had recently approved an



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 6 of 16

assistant City attorney position. which he had previously managed alone for seven years.
Before working in Kaysville. he had been an assistant City attorney for Layton City and
began his career as a prosccutor for Salt I.ake City. He held a bachelor’s and master’s
degree in criminal justice [rom Weber State University and a law degree [rom the
University of Utah. Mr. Mills emphasized his strong interest in municipal and local
government work and said that passion was what drew him to the position with Sunset
City.

Mayor Wiggill asked Mr. Mills how he would balance controlling costs for the City
while ensuring quality legal advice. and how he would handle staff inquiries.

Mr. Mills responded that he preferred to work under a flat-fee arrangement. He explained
that he was the only attorney in his practice but would contract with a few associales
when workload demands increased. He stated that he provided staff with his personal cell
phone number and encouraged them to contact him freely without worrying about
billable time, emphasizing the value ol accessibility.

Mayor Wiggill then asked how much time Mr. Mills could devote to Sunset City given
his other professional commitments.

Mr. Mills estimated that he could dedicate 10 to 15 hours per week outside of courtroom
time, noting that court appearances would not count toward that total,

Mayor Wiggill next asked if Mr. Mills had been convicted of any criminal offenses
within the past five years, excluding minor traffic violations.

Following that, Mayor Wiggill asked about Mr. Mills™ availability to City officials.
explaining that the City attorney reports to the City Council but is expected to work
cooperatively with the City Recorder and Department Heads.

Mr. Mills explained that he would prioritize requests based on urgency. addressing
critical matters immediately and others alter appropriate consideration. e said that
cffective triage depended on building good relationships with City stalf and maintaining
an occasional in-person presence at City offices.

Mayor Wiggill then presented a seenario-inwhich the City Council-wanted to-take an-
action that would not be allowed under the U.S. Constitution and asked how Mr. Mills
would respond.

Mr. Mills replied that his role would be to provide legal advice while policy decisions
remained the Council’s responsibility. He said that. when possible. he preferred to offer
such counsel privately rather than during open meetings, although he had advised
Councils publicly when necessary. He emphasized the importance ol having a good
working relationship with the Council so that potential issues could be discussed early.
often allowing for lawful alternatives to achieve the City’s goals. Ultimately. he said. if
the Council chose to proceed against his advice. that would be their prerogative.

Mayor Wiggill asked about Mr. Mills” experience with land use issues. noting his
significance in City business.



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 7 of 16

Mr. Mills stated that he had over 12 years of experience in land use matters. He had
served as a liaison to the Planning Commission while at Layton City and handled
annexation and development agreements. zoning issucs. and litigation in both Layvton and
Kaysville. He also served as a land use hearing olficer for Syracuse City. adjudicating
variances and appeals.

Mayor Wiggill moved on to prosecution-related questions and asked Mr. Mills how he
felt about prosecuting domestic violence and abuse cases.

Mr. Mills described such cases as difficult but rewarding. explaining that he had worked
as a misdemeanor prosecutor for his entire career. He noted that domestic violence cases
were among the most important and complex matters in the misdemeanor system.

Mayor Wiggill asked whether Mr. Mills believed prosecutors should be “tough on
crime.”

Mr. Mills said yes, but added that it was more important to be “smart on crime.” focusing
resources on repeat offenders. He said that most misdemeanor defendants were good
people who had made bad decisions and that his approach would be firm but fair.

Mayor Wiggill then asked about Mr. Mills™ process for handling tralfic and ordinance
violations and how seriously he regarded them.

Mr. Mills said he took traffic matters seriously and that they madc up the majority of his
caseload. He had tried approximately 195 bench trials. most involving tralfic cases. He
emphasized the importance of professionalism and fairness. especially because trafTic
cases were often the public’s first exposure to the justice system.

Mayor Wiggill presented a question regarding the City’s fines for weeds. junk. and
abandoned vehicles, asking Mr. Mills how he felt about prosecuting such cases bascd on
the City’s fine schedule.

Mr. Mills responded that such cases were important because they directly affected
residents’ quality of life. He said that while the City’s fine schedule seemed reasonable
and standard. he preferred to address the root causcs of code violations—often linked to

health-or-persenal-challenges—rather than-simply-issuing repeated-fines.

Mayor Wiggill clarified that the next question applied only to firms offering both City
attorney and prosecution services, asking whether Mr. Mills would be interested in
providing both. Mr. Mills said he was primarily interested in prosecution work but was
open to providing both services if needed. Mayor Wiggill asked whether he would be
willing to provide only one of the two services il requested. Mr. Mills confirmed that he
would and reiterated his preference [or prosecution. though he had substantial experience
in civil matters as well.

Mayor Wiggill invited Mr. Mills to share any additional information or ask questions of
the Council.

Mr. Mills said he appreciated the opportunity to interview and had reviewed the City’s
caseload, noting approximately 2,500 prosecutions in the past year. most of which were
traffic-related. He mentioned his familiarity with the Kaysville Police Department’s



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 8 of 16

leadership and expressed enthusiasm for the role. Mayor Wiggill thanked Mr, Mills for
his time and participation

Mayor Wiggill then moved on 1o the next interview with Daines & Jenkins. Dalton
Smuin stepped forward on behall of the lirm. Mayor Wiggill began the same set ol
questions.

Mr. Smuin introduced himsell and explained that his firm. Danies & Jenkins. had
represented Sunset City for approximately seven years. He noted that the City’s primary
attorney from their firm had recently become a justice court judge and had encouraged
him to continue serving the City. Mr. Smuin shared that he lived in Cache County with
his family and had two young children. Iis firm Special'yed in municipal law. providing
both civil and prosecution services. He listed his experience representing several northern
Utah cities in both capacities. 1 nlucllmc Tremonton, River Heights, Hyrum. North [.ogan.
and Park City.

Mayor Wiggill asked how Mr. Smuin would balance costs while ensuring quality legal
advice.

Mr. Smuin explained that his firm maintained dedicated stalt for both criminal and civil
divisions. allowing work to be efficiently delegated and managed under attorney
supervision.

Mayor Wiggill asked who would handle stall inquirics and whether there was another
attorney to back him up.

r. Smuin said he would serve as the primary contact, with attorney Jonathan Jenkins as
]m backup. He emphasized that City staff could contact him directly by cell phone
without going through office screening. adding that he maintained open communication
with City personnel, including the City Recorder.

When asked about his availability. Mr. Smuin said that his private practice schedule was
[Texible and that he could dedicate approximately 10 to 15 hours per week to Sunset City.
He described his availability as broad. noting that he could typically respond to calls or
messages quickly except when in court.

Mayor Wiggill proceeded with additional questions regarding his background.,
availability, and response approach. Mr. Smuin confirmed his accessibility to the City
recorder, Department Heads. and other officials, stating that they could reach him directly
as needed.

Mayor Wiggill then presented the same hypothetical scenario regarding a Council
proposal that would violate the U.S. Constitution and asked how he would advise the
Council,

Mr. Smuin explained that when becoming an attorney. an oath was taken to uphold and
defend the Constitution. He stated that while his allegiance to the City and Council was
strong, his first duty as an attorney was to the Constitution. Mr. Smuin advised that the
City should not take the proposed action. but if the City ultimately decided to do so. he
would still represent the City’s interests. However. Mr. Smuin strongly urged against
proceeding with the action,



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 9 of 16

Mayor Wiggill asked about Mr. Smuin’s experience handling appeals and other land use
1ssues. noting that such matters had been and would continue to be a consistent part of
City business.

Mr. Smuin shared that he had been involved in land use appeals within City appeal
systems. as well as in cases before the Property Ombudsman and in district court
litigation involving land use issues in various cities within Cache County. Mr. Smuin
noted that Sunset City had not had such a case during their tenure but explained that he
had litigated similar matters both in district court and before the Property Ombudsman.

Mayor Wiggill then transitioned to questions about prosecuting services and asked how
Mr. Smuin felt about prosecuting domestic violence and abuse cases.

Mr. Smuin referenced carlier remarks about serving as Tremonton Citv Attorney.
explaining that about a month and a half prior. two police officers had been killed in the
line of duty while responding to a domestic violence call. This tragedy, he said.
reinforced the importance of prosecuting domestic violence cases. He acknowledged that
these were difficult cases. as victims were often uncooperative or sought to minimize the
incident. Each case, they said, must be approached individually. Even when victims were
uncooperative, Mr. Smuin often proceeded with prosecution. recognizing that convictions
could be difficult but emphasizing the importance due to the serious federal consequences
that could result from failing to prosecute domestic violence offenses.

Mayor Wiggill then asked about Smuin’s approach to prosecuting tralfic and City
ordinance violations and the seriousness ol such cases.

Mr. Smuin explained that traffic cases and ordinance violations were viewed separately.
For traffic offenses, he reviewed the individual's driving record. Because nearly everyone
speeds at some point. first-time offenders typically received a “plea abeyance™ — they
paid a fine. but the offense did not alfect their record long-term. Repeated violations.
however, were handled with increasing severity. Mr. Smuin noted that while traffic
offenses might seem minor, they could have serious consequences. such as DUIs that.
though classified as misdemeanors il no one was injurcd. remained significant.

—Regarding ordinance prosecutions. Mr. Smuin said the primary goal was compliance
rather than punishment. The focus was on encouraging residents to clean up their
properties or cease unapproved activities. such as renting out single bedrooms. Mr,
Smuin cited a recent trial where the City sought compliance from a property owner
engaged in such rentals. While the goal was voluntary compliance, he explained that
prosecution was necessary when residents refused to cooperate.

Mayor Wiggill then asked aboul prosccuting abandoned vehicle cases. noting the City’s
fine schedule that increased from $50 [or a first conviction to $1.000 for a fifth.

Mr. Smuin said that a predetermined monetary line schedule was the lairest method for
enforcement. noting that the state used a similar system. He felt such consistency was
appropriate and ensured fairness. while the final decision on fines or penalties rested with
the judge. Mr. Smuin commended Judge Brower [or being fair and consistent in
sentencing.

o



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 10 of 16

Mayor Wiggill then asked whether Daines and Jenkins firm would consider providing
only one of the two services — City attorney or prosccuting — il requested.

Mr. Smuin responded that the current proposal was a package deal as submitted, but the
firm would consider a modified arrangement if the City proposed one.

When asked if he had any additional information to share. Mr. Smuin said he appreciated
the opportunity to speak. He recalled having assisted Sunset City vears earlier whilc
working as a paralegal at the same [irm before attending law school. Since then. he had
worked with the City on both criminal and civil matters and expressed gratitude for the
opportunity to continue serving.

Mayor Wiggill thanked Mr. Smuin for participating and invited the next group., the
Perkins & Poll prosecution tcam. to present.

Mr. Perkins began by introducing himself and Mr. Brandon Poll. noting that they had
worked together for many years. Mr. Perkins said they were always seeking meaningful
opportunities to serve and that working in Judge Brower’s court was particularlv
appealing due Lo past prolessional connections. Mr, Perkins clarified that their [firm was
not interested in City attorney work, despite listing it as an option in the proposal. and
emphasized that their focus was on prosccution. Together, they brought over [ifty years
of combined experience, having worked for multiple cities, and both held primary
positions with the Davis County Attorney’s Olfice — a background Mr. Perkins said
brought valuable benelits to their work.,

When asked about controlling legal costs while maintaining quality service. Mr. Perkins
explained that the City would be working dircctly with them. supported only by a clerical
secretary, ensuring no unnecessary staffing costs. He emphasized that they valued direct
communication and accessibility, noting that City officials would have their personal
contact information. They prelerred a low-maintenance approach — handling legal issucs
quietly and efficiently so City ofticials would not need to worry about problems arising
[rom court or prosecution operations.

Mayor Wiggill then asked who would respond to City staff inquiries and how workload

would be managed

ol
[

Mr. Perkins explained that he and Mr. Poll were nearly interchangeable in their
prosecution work due to their long partnership and shared experience. Either one could
respond promptly to questions. e mentioned that the City's Police Chicl already had
their contact information and that Mr. Poll had recently communicated with the court
staff in preparation for covering court duties.

Regarding time commitment. Mr. Perkins said they had a realistic understanding of the
City’s needs. He agreed with carlier asscssments from other applicants about the
workload and explained that their firm would not handle civil matters.

Mayor Wiggill then asked about their availability and response time to City officials
should issues arise.



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 11 of 16

Mr. Perkins replied that response times would depend on urgency. but they always
addressed important matters promptly. e said that their extensive experience meant they
often did not need additional rescarch and could provide quick. informed responses.

When asked how they would handle a situation where the Council proposed an action
that violated the U.S. Constitution, Mr. Perkins said the answer was straightforward: he
would never advise or permit an unconstitutional action. He emphasized his commitment
to uphold both the U.S. and Utah State Constitutions. as required by his oaths and as
citizens.

Mayor Wiggill asked about their experience with land use appeals and other related
issues, and then followed with a question on prosccuting domestic violence and abuse
cases.

M. Perkins said one major advantage of their [irm was their experience at the county
level, where they had authority to decide whether to file cases as Class A misdemeanors
or felonies in district court. He explained that their experience reduced the need for
multiple trials. sparing victims from testilying twice. and emphasized their comfort and
experience with jury trials at the district court level.

On the question of being tough on erime. Mr. Perkins said that while toughness was
important in serious cases -— such as domestic violence, DUIs. child abuse. or animal
cruelty — they were mindful that prosecution often involved their own community
members. He aimed to balance firmness with fairness, quoting the philosophy of being
“nice until you're not.”

When asked about prosecuting traflic and City ordinance violations. Mr. Perkins said
their extensive experience gave them perspective to distinguish between serious and
minor cases. He sought outcomes that encouraged compliance without unnecessary
hardship, ensuring justice while maintaining efficiency.

Regarding ordinance violations. such as weeds. junk. and abandoned vehicles. Mr.
Perkins said the City’s fine schedule was reasonable and consistent with other courts. e
stressed that compliance was the primary goal and that fairness was essential since these

cases involved neighbors and residents. He wanted penalties to encourage cooperation
while maintaining community trust and the court’s legitimacy.

Mayor Wiggill thanked the Perkins & Poll team for their time and invited any further
questions from the Council.

0. Mosquito Abatement District — Davis Proposed Tax Increase: Council Member
Smalling explained that the mosquito abatement program had outgrown its current
building and that Davis County s growth required expanded resources. The proposed tax
increase was intended to fund improvements for pesticide storage, laboratory space. and
employee facilities.

Council Member Smalling described the inadequacies of the current 27-year-old
building. noting that it lacked sultficient space lor safe chemical handling and modern
equipment use. She detailed the increased need for mosquito control due to population



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 12 of 16

growth, expanded subdivisions. and rising West Nile virus cases —— including two deaths
in Davis county during the previous season.

She explained that new mosquito control products were more ¢ffective but significantly
more expensive, with costs rising from $75 to $295 per gallon. She also described new
drone technology being implemented for spraying operations and the need for appropriate
storage and handling facilities to support this equipment.

Council Member Smalling discussed plans for laboratory upgrades to enhance
surveillance and disease testing. as well as expansions to locker rooms and ofTice spaces
for the growing number of seasonal and full-time emplovees. The project, she said. would
modernize operations while remaining on the same site footprint.

The proposed tax rate increase would move from 0.000093 to 0.000117, meaning that the
average Davis County homeowner. with a $600.000 property value, would see an annual
increase of approximately $7.92.

Council Member Smalling acknowledged discomfort with proposing any tax increase but
stressed the importance of maintaining effective mosquito control for public health and
employee safety. She noted that a public hearing on the proposal would be held on
December 11th. with options for in-person or electronic attendance. and encouraged
residents o participate and voice their opinions. She concluded by providing location
details for the Mosquito Abatement District office and reiterated appreciation for the
program’s service to the community.,

Council Member Thompson asked if the Truth in Taxation meeting would be held on the
11" at 6:30pm. Council Member Bartling clarified that the meeting would begin at 7:00
p.m.. and Council Member Smalling noted that parking at that location was limited.
Council Member Bartling added that the address was 85 North 600 West. Council
Member Smalling commented that crossing the road there could be difficult. agreeing
that the location posed some challenges.

Mayor, Council and Department Head Reports: Council Member Carlson reported
that there had not been a North Davis Fire District meeting recently. He shared that he
~and Mayor Wiggill had attended an open house for a firefighter, Harold Weeks, who -
retired after 36 years with the department. Council Member Carlson said it was a pleasure
to celebrate and visit with members of the department.

Council Member Thompson shared updates on senior citizen activities. explaining that
October events were wrapping up but that cach day of the coming weck would feature a
different activity, culminating on Friday with a “Monster Bash.™ The event would include
a costume contest, games. food. and other fun activities. Council Member Thompson also
noted that the Senior Expo would take place the following day, with buses provided for
transportation. Unfortunately. due to funding cuts, two support groups — for Alzheimer’s
and Parkinson’s — had been reduced to one meeting per month each. and one dance class
had been canceled. However. new multicultural dance and enhanced fitness classes had
been added on Mondays and Thursdays. She encouraged anyone interested 1o join.



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 13 of 16

Council Member Smalling stated that most of her items had already been discussed but
wanted to provide additional clarification about the Mosquito Abatements proposed rate
increase — explaining that it rose from $30.69 to $38.61 per year. an increase o $7.92
annually or about $0.66 per month. She said it was helpful for residents to understand
how that broke down. Council Member Smalling then expressed excitement about
upcoming veterans® activities, announcing that 1hc Veterans Day program would be held
on November 15th at 10:00 a.m. in the morning. The theme would be the Vietnam War.
marking its 50th anniversary. A groundbreaking ceremony for the new Agent Orange
Memorial would also take place that day at 11:30 a.m. Council Member Smalling shared
enthusiasm about the project. noting that she had secured a speaker and was finalizing
details. She said that honoring veterans was onc ol her [avorite parts ol serving on the
Council.

=
12
£
=
R

Council Member Carlson then added an additional comment, saying he had forgotten to
mention earlier his disappointment about the development agreement discussed that
evening. Council Member Carlson explained that during the prior meeting with the City
attorney, they had reviewed the agreement line by linc and originally settled on a four-
year term as a fair compromise between the City’s initial two-year p 'opmal and Mr.
Cook’s seven-year request. The City attorney. had recommended three to five years. and
he believed the compromise was appropriate.

Council Member Rigley stated she stood by her decision regarding the agreement. She
explained she had reviewed the document several times to ensure her concerns were
clear, even though she could not attend the meeting in person. Council Member Rigley
said her primary issue was the timeline and that she felt many of the Council’s concerns
were not addressed. Council Member Rigley expressed frustration that the developer
resisted including language requiring compliance with federal and state laws. calling that
stance “outrageous.” She said she did not feel the outcome represented a true compromise
but appreciated the effort of those who attended.

Council Member Rigley then reported that she was still working on forming a Youth
Council, noting that ‘while several individuals had expressed interest. none had vet
comp leled 1he application form. She planned to continue outreach efTorts. Council

Member Rigley also mentioned excitement for the City’s “Trunk or Treat™ event
sf,hc-,du!c,d I01 October 24th from 6:00p.m. to 8:00 p.m. in the City hall parking lot. She
expected it to be a fun event for families.

Council Member Bartling said he had been contacted by two residents about properties in
poor condition. One property. located on 2300 North just north ol the elementary school,
had significant weed problems. Another property nearby had clutter and even a forklift
parked in the yard. Council Member Bartlinu explained that one of the homes was a
rental and the other was owner-occupied. The landlord of the rental property expressed
frustration that code enforcement notices were placed only on the door. and she was
unaware of violations until later. Ie suggested the City consider a way to notify landlords
directly when code violations occur at their properties.

Director Monroe asked permission from Mavor Wiggill to contact the developer carly the
next morning regarding the unpassed agreement. hoping to prevent the developer [rom



Sunset City Corporation

City Council Minutes

October 21, 2025

Page 14 of 16
coming to City offices upset and taking it out on staff. Director Monroc emphasized the
importance of protecting employees. Council Member Rigley responded that if
harassment occurred. the police should be called. Director Monroe agreed and clarified
his goal was to prevent any escalation.

Director Monroe then updated the Council on several projects. At the 1800 North
construction site, contamination had entered a walter line within a park area. The situation
was i1solated. and crews were testing. chlorinating. and [lushing the lines. Residents might
notice a large amount of water being discharged as part of the process. Director Monroe
reported improvements at Veterans Park. where bark around the water feature was being
replaced with decorative rock to improve the park’s appearance before the upcoming
groundbreaking ceremony. Public Works was managing these projects despite limited
staff, with a new employee starting the following week.

Council Member Bartling asked for an update on the Citv's road and sidewalk
evaluations. Director Monroe said sidewalk assessments were about 50% complete and
that the contractor would soon deliver a detailed report with recommendations. The City
would then prioritize repairs based on the budget. He added that the road and signage
survey was completed and available in the City’s maintenance soltware, noting that while
the results were concerning, he would help guide future budget planning.

Chief Jamison said he would review the addresses Council Member Bartling mentioned
earlier and look into any related issues. He congratulated those running for office. noting
that the next meeting would reveal the election results. Chief Jamison expressed
appreciation for all the City prosecutors who had worked with the department over the
years. saying they were all capable and dedicated.

Council Member Rigley then asked Chief Jamison whether it would be considered
harassment if the developer came into City hall and yelled at staff. Chiel Jamison said
that while the situation would depend on specific behavior. he would be prepared to
address it if it occurred. Council Member Rigley reiterated that staft’s safety was a
priority and that such conduct would be unacceptable. Director Monroe agreed.
emphasizing they were simply trying to prevent issues before they occurred.

Mayor Wiggtll then asked 1f Recorder Supp had any updates. She advised she did not at
this time.

Mayor Wiggill reported that new custom-made picnic tables had been delivered and
installed at the Veterans Park. funded through the prior vear’s budget. The tables looked
great and were a welcome addition. He thanked Public Works for their efforts.

Mayor Wiggill added several updates. including cleanup efforts for fall. ongoing
construction on 1800 North, and improvements at Sunset Elementary School. He
encouraged residents to keep gutters clear of debris to prevent drainage problems. Mayor
Wiggill also praised Public Works for their work at Veterans Park and expressed
appreciation for the retiring firelighter. Battalion Chief Harold Weeks. for his many years
of service. Mayor Wiggill invited residents to the upcoming City “Candy Crawl™ event
and noted that while discussions with the developer had been challenging.
communication remained open and respectful.



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

*age 15 of 16

8. Council Member Smalling made a motion to take a short break and then move into a Work
Session and Council Member Bartling seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously
with Council Members Bartling, Carlson. Rigley. Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

Work Session (8:44pm)

1.

Discuss Attorney Interviews: The Council had some additional questions to ask the
candidates for attorney services. Mavor Wiggill explained that each candidate would be
asked the same questions.

Council Member Thompson questioned Mr. Mills [irst, conlirming that his RFP focused
primarily on criminal prosecution. Mr. Mills replied that criminal work was his main
interest but that he would be willing to do both civil and criminal work if needed.
Council Member Thompson then asked the same question of Mr. Smuin, who explained
that his proposal covered both criminal and civil services. His bid listed $6.250 (or
prosecutorial work and $190 per hour for civil services. He said if he were awarded only
one area, he would adjust accordingly. noting his civil rate might differ slightly.

The same question was posed to Mr. Perkins and his partner. who indicated they were
open to providing both services or just one. depending on what the City decided. They
later clarified that their interest was primarily in prosecution.

Additional questions were asked regarding preferred contract length and reasons why the
City might or might not choose cach candidate. Mr. Mills said he prelers a one-year
contract and the City might choose another firm for reasons of continuity or experience
but felt each applicant brought strong qualifications. Mr. Smuin expressed enthusiasm for
working with the City and said a one-year contract was also his preferred time. He shared
he was young and willing to serve the City for a long time. Mr. Perkins expressed they
wanted to serve as long as the City found the partnership benelicial. If the City wants
someone experience, they. were it.

After the additional questions. the Couneil briclly recessed to deliberate.

Council Member Smalling expressed gratitude and shared this is a big decision for the
Council to make. Council Member Bartling thanked all four applicants for their interest

in serving the City.

2. Council Member Carlson made a motion to adjourn and move back into the Regular session
and Council Member Smalling seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with
Council Members Bartling, Carlson. Rigley. Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

Regular Meeting

9.

Discuss and Award Request for Proposal for Attorney Services: Council Member
Thompson then announced the Council’s decision: to award the civil legal services
contract to Dalton Smuin with Daines and Jenkins. and the prosecutorial services contract
to Perkins and Poll. Both irms accepted.

Mayor Wiggill thanked all participants and noted that staff would coordinate next steps.
including final contract details.



Sunset City Corporation
City Council Minutes
October 21, 2025

Page 16 of 16

Council Member Thompson made a motion to award the attorney services request for proposals
and Council Member Carlson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously with a roll
call vote from Council Members Bartling, Carlson. RIEIL}. Smalling and Thompson voting yes.

The Regular meeting adjourned at 8:59 p.m.

Approved — November 18. 2025

Scott Wiggill. Mayor Nicole Supp. Recorder




ORDINANCE 2025-04

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUNSET,
UTAH REPEALING SUNSET CITY CODE SECTION 10-12-1 ENTITLED
INTERNAL ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS.

WHEREAS, the City Council of Sunset City previously adopted Ordinance No.
2024-06 on November 19, 2024, establishing Section 10-12-1 of the Sunset City Code
pertaining to Internal Accessory Dwelling Units (IADUs): and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the effectiveness. community impacts.
and administrative requirements of Section 10-12-1 and has determined that the continued
allowance of Internal Accessory Dwelling Units is not in the best interest of the City at this
time; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to repeal Section 10-12-1 in its entirety in
order to preserve the character and density of existing residential neighborhoods: and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that repeal of this section will promote the
public health, safety. and general welfare of the residents of Sunset City:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF SUNSET, UTAH, THAT:

SECTION I - ENACTMENT

The attached Exhibit A contains the following chapter to be removed in its entirety.

SECTION 11 - EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon publication or posting as required by
law.

ADOPTED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Sunset, Utah, this 18"
day of November, 2025.

Signed: Attest:
Scott Wiggill, Mayor Nicole Supp. City Recorder

Ordinance 2025-04 Page 10f 3



EXHIBIT A

10-12-1: Internal Accessory Dwelling Units
10-12-1: INTERNAL ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS:

A. Purpose: Internal Accessory Dwelling Units (IADUs) in single-family residential zones are
an important tool in the overall housing goals and needs of the city and allow for alternative and
flexible housing options in owner-occupied single-family residences. The purposes of the IADU
standards of this code are to:

1. Create new housing units while respecting the appearance, neighborhood character, and
scale of single-family residential development.

2. Provide more housing choices in residential zones.

3. Allow more efficient use of existing housing and large underutilized yards.

4. Provide housing options [or family caregivers. adult children. aging parents, and families
secking smaller households.

5. Offer a means for residents. particularly seniors. single parents. and families with grown
children, to remain in their homes and neighborhoods. and obtain extra income. security.
companionship, and services.

6. Broaden the range of affordable housing options throughout the City.

B. Definitions:

OWNLER-OCCUPANCY: Any one of the following individuals resides on the subject
property for the entire time during which an accessory dwelling unit or principal dwelling is
rented or otherwise occupied by:

. An individual who is listed on a recorded deed as an owner of the property:

2. Any person who is related by blood, marriage or adoption to an individual who is listed
on a recorded deed as an owner of the property; or

3. Anindividual who is a trustor of a family trust who possesses legal ownership of the
property.

C. The occupants of an IADU shall be limited by one of the following lamily categories:

1. One (1) person living alone: or

2. Two (2) related or unrelated adults and their children.

3. Any of the above categories plus a temporary guest. A "temporary guest" is defined as a
person who stays with a family for a period of less than ninety (90) days within any rolling one
(1) year period and does not utilize the dwelling as a legal address for any purpose.

D. Local Requirements in accordance with Utah Code 10-9a-530-4, the city:

I Zones - Within the R-1, R-3 and RT zones only. TADUs are allowed in single-family. not
allowed in multi-family lots or lots that do not meet requirements (parking. setbacks. ctc.)

2. Entire structure must be in compliance with all applicable codes. including building.
health and fire codes. An initial building inspection and fire inspection must be completed prior
to approval of and/or issuance of [ADU permit.

3. TADUs may only be rented, not sold.

4. One IADU maximum per lot.

5. Lot size must be a minimum of six thousand (6.000) square feet.

6. Separate accessible entrance or stairway that must be located on the side or the back.

7. Same address number, but refer to the IADU as "Unit B." Addresses must be located in a

visible location on the street frontage side of the home.
8. An IADU must provide living areas for eating. sleeping and full bathroom, including

Ordinance 2025-04 Page 2 of 3



kitchen, bathroom sink. toilet, shower/bath. separate [rom the principal dwelling unit.

9. The owner of the property shall occupy cither the IADU or the primary dwelling where
the IADU is located as their place of primary residence.

10.  Separate utility connections shall not be permitted for IADUS. Owners of lots with an
IADU shall be charged for two (2) city utility connections. regardless of shared connection.
Owner will be responsible for meter and payment.

IT. TADU'S may only be rented for long-term rentals of thirty (30) consecutive days or
longer. No rentals less than thirty (30) days will be allowed.

12, No home occupation business shall be established within an TADU without the express
written permission of the property owner. and approval from the city Business License Official.

13. For The Owner: Yearly rental license from the city will be required for all TADUs. If the
unit is being rented as a long-term rental. a rental license from the city must be obtained by the
owner prior to renting out the unit,

E. Parking Requirements:

. A single-family dwelling with an IADU shall provide at least one (1) additional off-
street parking space for the IADU. In no case shall the number of off-street parking spaces be
less than the number of vehicles being maintained on the premises. This shall include covered
parking, garages and tandem parking in driveways. Tandem parking within a driveway is
allowed to meet the parking requirement. No parking spaces may be located within the front or
side yard setbacks adjacent to a strect. except for within an approved driveway. At a minimum.
all parking areas and driveways shall be paved with concrete. asphalt, masonry. or concrete
pavers. Permitted accessory parking standards must meet minimum parking requirements. No
IADU may be allowed on any lot that cannot satisfy the parking requirements.

2. Any parking spaces contained within a garage or carport should be replaced if an IADU
is created within that space.

F. TADU Permit Required: All IADUs must be [ully permitted and licensed before being
occupied. Citations shall be issued after ninety (90) days if land use has not been permitted.

I. Application must include detailed floor plans and payment of initial permit fee.

2. Before permit will be issued, evidence of payment of all other required fees and
certificates of inspections must be submitted. (Ord. 2024-06. 11-19-2024)

Ordinance 2025-04 Page 3 of 3



ORDINANCE 2025-05

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUNSET,
UTAH ADOPTING CHAPTER 12 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS TO
TITLE 10: ZONING REGULATIONS.

WHEREAS, the City Council of Sunset City desires to ensure that the City’s land
use regulations support the goals of the City’s General Plan, including providing a variety of
housing types while preserving the character of established neighborhoods: and

WHEREAS, Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) provide additional. flexible housing
options for residents, family members. and caregivers. helping to meet community housing
needs while maintaining single-family neighborhood integrity; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and appropriate to adopt
regulations governing internal and external attached accessory dwelling units in order to
promote orderly development and protect the health, safety. and welfare of Sunset City
residents; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed and recommended approval of
this proposed addition to the Sunset City Code following a duly noticed public hearing. and
the City Council has conducted its own public hearing in accordance with Utah Code
Annotated §10-9a-205;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SUNSET, UTAH, THAT:

SECTION I - ENACTMENT

The attached Exhibit A contains the following amendments to Title 10: Zoning
Regulations

SECTION I - EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon publication or posting as required by
law.

ADOPTED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Sunset. Utah, this 18"
day of November, 2025,

Signed: B Attest:
Scott Wiggill. Mayor Nicole Supp. City Recorder

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 1 of 7



EXHIBIT A

Chapter 12 - Accessory Dwelling Units

A. Purpose. Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) in single-family residential zones are
an important tool in the overall housing goals and needs of the City and allow for
alternative and flexible housing options in owner-occupied single-family
residences.

B. Accessory Dwelling Units Defined. An accessory dwelling unit (ADU) is a second
dwelling unit in an owner-occupied single-family property that is clearly incidental
and accessory to the main dwelling on the property. ADUs are categorized by
being internal, detached or attached. References herein to an “accessory
dwelling unit” or "ADU" without designating either external or internal is a
reference to both internal and external accessory dwelling units.

a.

Internal ADU. “Internal ADU" means an ADU located (a) within a primary
dwelling unit; (b) within the footprint of the primary dwelling unit at the time
the Internal ADU is created; and (c) for the purpose of offering a long-term
rental of 30 consecutive days or longer. Internal ADUs must meet the
standards in Utah Code 10-9a-530.

External ADU. "External ADU” means an ADU located in a structure other

than the primary dwelling unit. The following types are considered external

ADUs:

I.  Detached ADU. “Detached ADU" means an ADU located in an
accessory building on the property and not attached to or within the
principal dwelling unit. Detached ADUs are not permitted within any
zone. No structure that is detached from the primary dwelling unit
may be used, constructed, or converted for use as a Detached
ADU. Attached ADU. "Attached ADU"” means a new ADU is
constructed as a physical expansion (i.e., addition) of the primary
dwelling and is attached to the single-family dwelling unit by one or

more common walls.

C. Permitted and Conditional Uses. Accessory dwelling units shall be permitted in
the Residential R-1 Zone only and when as permitted herein. If the ADU is not
designated within a particular zone, then it is prohibited.

D. General Standards.

a

. ADU permit application shall be required for all internal, and external

attached units. Only applications deemed complete by City Staff will be
processed. Complete applications include appropriate application forms
reflecting the standards of the City, plans, texts and signatures as required
on the form available at City Hall. A letter or email confirming the

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 2 of 7



completeness of the application may be requested by the applicant. All
applications shall be accompanied by the appropriate fee as established
from time to time by resolution of the City Council.

Only one ADU per property is permitted.

ADUs shall meet all building codes and obtain all required permits prior to
occupancy of the ADU.

. The applicant shall have a fee simple title to the property.

e. The ADU shall have a separate entrance that is not visible from the street

and that does not disrupt the single-family appearance of the existing
structure.

The ADU shall have the same address number as the primary dwelling
unit, but refer to the ADU as “Unit B.” Addresses must be located in a
visible location on the street frontage side of the home

. The ADU shall have a minimum of one bedroom and a three-quarter bath.

. The ADU shall have a kitchen.

Parking Requirements for ADUs:

I. A single-family dwelling with an ADU shall provide at least one (1)
additional off-street parking space for the ADU. In no case shall the
number of off-street parking spaces be less than the number of
vehicles being maintained on the premises. This shall include
covered parking, garages and tandem parking in driveways.
Tandem parking within a driveway is allowed to meet the parking
requirement. No parking spaces may be located within the front
yard or side yard setbacks adjacent to a street, except for within an
approved driveway. At a minimum, all parking areas and driveways
shall be paved with concrete, asphalt, masonry, or concrete pavers.
Permitted accessory parking standards must meet minimum
parking requirements. No ADU may be allowed on any lot that
cannot satisfy the parking requirements.

il.  Any parking spaces contained within a garage or carport should be

replaced if an ADU is created within that space.
ii. ~ No vehicles shall be parked on the front lawn or other landscaped
areas except within an approved driveway.
The property shall be neatly maintained and shall meet all current codes
regarding property maintenance and public health standards.
The applicant has not been notified or fined by the City for any code
violations relating to this property or any other property within the previous
12 months.

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 3 of 7



. Owner Occupancy. An Application for an ADU shall only issue when an
owner occupant lives on the property within either the principal or
accessory dwelling unit. Owner occupancy shall be defined as follows:

. OWNER-OCCUPANCY: Any one of the following individuals
resides on the subject property for the entire time during which an
accessory dwelling unit or principal dwelling is rented or otherwise
occupied by:

1. Anindividual who is listed on a recorded deed as an owner
of the property;

2. Any person who is related by blood, marriage or adoption to
an individual who is listed on a recorded deed as an owner
of the property; or

3. Anindividual who is a trustor of a family trust who possesses
legal ownership of the property.

m. The occupants of an ADU shall be limited by one of the following family
categories:

i.  One (1) person living alone; or

i. Two (2) related or unrelated adults and their children.

lii.  Any of the above categories plus a temporary guest. A “temporary
guest” is defined as a person who stays with a family for a period of
less than ninety (90) days within any rolling one (1) year period and
does not utilize the dwelling as a legal address for any purpose.

n. The ADU must be rented for periods of 30 consecutive days or more.

o. All ADUs shall connect to the utility lines as follows:

I.  Internal ADUs and External Attached ADUs may connect to the
same (water and sewer) utility lines as the primary dwelling unit.

E. Internal ADU Standards.

a. Purpose: Internal Accessory Dwelling Units (IADUs) in single-family

residential zones are an important tool in the overall housing goals and

owner-occupied single-family residences. The purposes of the IADU
standards of this code are to:

I.  Create new housing units while respecting the appearance,
neighborhood character, and scale of single-family residential
development.

ii.  Provide more housing choices in residential zones.

. Allow more efficient use of existing housing and large underutilized
yards.

iv.  Provide housing options for family caregivers, adult children aging
parents, and families seeking smaller households.

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 4 of 7

needs of the City and allow for alternative and flexible housing options in



Vi

Offer a means for residents, particularly seniors, single parents,
and families with grown children, to remain in their homes and
neighborhoods, and obtain extra income, security, companionship,
and services.

Broaden the range of affordable housing options throughout the
City.

b. Definitions:

I

OWNER-OCCUPANCY: Any one of the following individuals
resides on the subject property for the entire time during which an
accessory dwelling unit or principal dwelling is rented or otherwise
occupied by:

1. Anindividual who is listed on a recorded deed as an owner
of the property;

2. Any person who is related by blood, marriage or adoption to
an individual who is listed on a recorded deed as an owner
of the property; or

3. Anindividual who is a trustor of a family trust who possesses
legal ownership of the property.

c. The occupants of an IADU shall be limited by one of the following family
categories:

1. One (1) person living alone; or

2. Two (2) related or unrelated adults and their children.

3. Any of the above categories plus a temporary guest. A
“temporary guest” is defined as a person who stays with a
family for a period of less than ninety (90) days within any
rolling one (1) year period and does not utilize the dwelling
as a legal address for any purpose.

d. Local Requirements in accordance with Utah Code 10-9a-530-4. the City:

Zones - Within the R-1, R-3 and RT zones only, IADUs are allowed

in single-family, not allowed in multi-family lots or lots that do not

Vi

meet requirements (parking, setbacks, etc.)

The entire structure must be in compliance with all applicable
codes, including building, health and fire codes. An initial building
inspection and fire inspection must be completed prior to approval
of and/or issuance of IADU permit.

IADUs may only be rented, not sold.

One IADU maximum per lot.

Lot size must be greater than six thousand (6,000) square feet.
Separate accessible entrance or stairway that must be located on
the side or the back.

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 5 of 7



Vil

Vil

Xi.

Xil.

Xiil.

Same address number, but refer to the IADU as “Unit B.”
Addresses must be located in a visible location on the street
frontage side of the home.

An IADU must provide living areas for eating, sleeping and full
bathroom, including kitchen, bathroom sink, toilet, shower/bath,
separate from the principal dwelling unit.

The owner of the property shall occupy either the IADU or the
primary dwelling where the IADU is located as their place of
primary residence.

Separate utility connections shall not be permitted for IADUs.
Owners of lots with an IADU shall be charged for two (2) city utility
connections, regardless of shared connection. The owner will be
responsible for the meter and payment.

IADUs may only be rented for long-term rentals of thirty (30)
consecutive days or longer. No rentals less than thirty (30) days will
be allowed.

No home occupation business shall be established within an IADU
without the express written permission of the property owner, and
approval from the City Business License Official.

For the Owner: Yearly rental license from the City will be required
for all IADUs. If the unit is being rented as a long-term rental, a
rental license from the City must be obtained by the owner prior to
renting out the unit.

e. Parking Requirements:

A single-family dwelling with an IADU shall provide at least one (1)
additional off-street parking space for the IADU. In no case shall the
number of off-street parking spaces be less than the number of
vehicles being maintained on the premises. This shall include
covered parking, garages and tandem parking in driveways.
Tandem parking within a driveway is allowed to meet the parking

requirement. No parking spaces may be located within the front
yard or side yard setbacks adjacent to a street, except for within an
approved driveway. AT a minimum, all parking areas and driveways
shall be paved with concrete, asphalt, masonry, or concrete pavers.
Permitted accessory parking standards must meet minimum
parking requirements. No IADU may be allowed on any lot that
cannot satisfy the parking requirements.

Any parking spaces contained within a garage or carport should be
replaced if an IADU is created within that space.

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 6 of 7



f. IADU Permit Required: All IADUs must be fully permitted and licensed
before being occupied. Citations shall be issued after ninety (90) days if

land use has not been permitted.

I.  Application must include detailed floor plans and payment of initial

permit fee.

ii.  Before a permit will be issued, evidence of payment of all other
required fees and certificates of inspections must be submitted.

(Ord. 2024-05, 11-19-2024)

F. Attached ADU Standards.

a. Attached ADUs shall maintain the outward appearance of a single-family
residence, so that the appearance is not altered in a manner to appear as
a duplex with such features as two front doors and two garages or

carports facing the street.

b. The total area of an attached ADU shall not exceed 50 percent of the
square footage of the habitable area of the building footprint of the primary
residence and in no case exceed 800 square feet.

External Attached ADU

Location

Attached to Primary Dwelling Unit

Minimum Lot Size

6,000 square feet

Size Limit, Habitable

50% up to 800 square feet

Maximum Height Limit

Same as Primary Dwelling Unit

Maximum Side Setback

Same as Primary Dwelling Unit

Minimum Rear Setback

-Same-as Primary Pwelling-Unit—

d. Fire Regulations.

I External Attached ADUs will remain subject to the same fire
regulations as the primary dwelling.

Ordinance 2025-05 Page 7 of 7



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUNSET CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS THE BOARD OF
CANVASSERS CERTIFYING THE RESULTS OF THE NOVEMBER 4, 2025 MUNICIPAL
GENERAL ELECTION.

Whereas, the Sunset City contracted with Davis County to administer the 2025
Municipal Elections., and

Whereas, the Davis County Clerk/Auditor has provided the official canvass results of
the Sunset City Municipal General Election held November 4, 2025; and

Whereas, Utah Code §20A-4-301 requires the Sunset City Council, acting as the Board
of Canvassers, to certify the official results; and

Now, Therefore, be it resolved by the Sunset City Council that the official results of the
November 4, 2025 Sunset City Municipal General Election are hereby certified as contained in
the report provided by the Davis County Clerk/Auditor.

The following candidates are hereby declared elected in the November 4, 2025 Sunset
City Municipal General Election:

Scott Wiggill for the office of Mayor
Nancy Greco Smalling for the office of Council Member

Katherine R, Hunter for the office of Council Member

Approved and adopted by the Sunset City Council this 18th day of November, 2025.

Scott Wiggill, Mayor

Nicole Supp, Recorder



STATE OF UTAH
COUNTY OF DAVIS

SUNSET CITY CANVASS CERTIFICATION
2025 MUNICIPAL GENERAL

The undersigned Sunset City Board of Canvassers and the Sunset City Recorder do hereby
certify the results of the 2025 General held on the 4™ day of November, 2025 as appears from the
attached official returns of said Primary as filed and on record in the office of the Sunset City
Recorder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. we. the Board of Canvassers have hercunto subscribed our signatures
and [, the Sunset City Recorder has subscribed my signature and affixed the seal of the City of
Sunset, this 18" day of November, 2025.

Scott Wiggill, Mayor

Ricky Carlson. City Council Member

Hope Thompson, City Council Member

Nancy Smalling, City Council Member

Nakisha Rigley. City Council Member

Sam Bartling, City Council Member

Nicole Supp, City Recorder



